
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

9 July 2019 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CABINET 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet on 
Wednesday, 17th July, 2019 at 10.00 am 

In the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
 
Deputy Leader – Councillor Nigel Welton 
Councillors Martin Griggs, Chelcei Sharman, Paul Skinner, Yvonne Stevens and 
Aaron Spencer 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 5th June 2019. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

D   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 12th July 2019. 
 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING ITEM)*  
 

2   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
(STANDING ITEM)  
 

3   TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - REFRESH (Pages 13 - 20) 
 

 (A report by the Corporate Management Team) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Leader of the Council  
 

4   BOSTON ALTERNATIVE ENERGY FACILITY CONSULTATION SUBMISSION 
(Pages 21 - 40) 
 

 (A report by Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Yvonne Stevens 
 

 
 

* In accordance with the Constitution, recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees referred to Cabinet (if any) shall be included at this point in the 
agenda (unless they have been considered in the context of the Cabinet 
deliberations on a substantive item on the agenda) within six weeks of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee completing its report / recommendations. 

 
 
Call-In –any decision taken by the Cabinet concerning an item on this agenda can be 
‘called in’ in accordance with the Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision 
notice being published.  It is expected that the decision notice will be published on                                   
Friday 19th July 2019.  Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in a decision 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 26th July 2019. 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
the consideration of exempt or confidential items. 

 

Emergency Procedures In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are 
asked to leave the building via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to 

the Fire Assembly Point located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal 
Buildings. 

 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Tel. no: 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
NOTICE OF DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET ON 5 JUNE 2019 

 
DATE OF PUBLICATION: FRIDAY, 7 JUNE 2019 

 
DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN: FRIDAY, 14 JUNE 2019 

 
NOTES: 
 
A COPY OF THE CABINET AGENDA HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED TO 
ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY FURTHER 
INFORMATION ON ANY ISSUE PLEASE CONTACT, IN THE FIRST INSTANCE, THE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR OFFICER NAMED IN THE RIGHT HAND COLUMN. 
 

 
MEETING OF THE CABINET 5 June 2019 
 
 
Present: 
Councillor Michael Cooper, in the Chair 
Councillors Nigel Welton, Martin Griggs, Chelcei Sharman, Paul Skinner, Aaron Spencer 
and Yvonne Stevens 
 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer), Chief Finance Officer and 
S151 Officer, Head of Regulatory Services, Economic Development Manager, Head of 
Corporate Services, Transformation & Governance Manager, Communications Manager 
and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
1   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 3 April 2019 were received and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
2   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from the Head of Environmental Operations. 
 
3   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
4   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
A question had been received from a member of the public, but had been withdrawn. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



5   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING 
ITEM)* 
 

There were no recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 
6   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

(BTAC) (STANDING ITEM) 
 

 
DECISION 
 
That the use of £40,000 funding allocated to support open space 
improvements be approved as follows: 
1. £24,950 for play area equipment in Shelton’s Field, St John’s Park 

and Central Park;  
2. £15,050 to match a Boston Big Local grant for provision of a 

Pirate Ship on Woodville Road Play Area subject to quotes. 
 
 

 
 
 

Officer 
 

PP 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 

The Chief Executive presented recommendations made by the Boston Town Area 
Committee at its meeting on 20 March 2019 in accordance with the constitution, as they 
involved expenditure over £10,000. 
 
Following BTAC’s 2018 play site tour, the Committee had requested details of potential 
future play area improvements to BTAC play areas to enable the Committee to continue 
its investment in outdoor play areas. 
 
At its meeting on 30 January 2019, the Committee proposed that £40,000 be allocated 
to support open space improvements and that the Open Spaces Working Group be 
tasked with preparing detailed proposals for the expenditure and reporting back to the 
Committee as soon as practicable. 
 
The Working Group agreed to prioritise St John’s Park and Shelton’s Field and asked 
the Play & Physical Activity Officer to obtain quotes in line with Boston Borough 
Council’s Procurement Regulations, from Play Equipment suppliers on behalf the 
Working Group, as follows. 
 

Site Improvements Available Funding 

St Johns

  

Play Panels – Musical, Manipulative 

Goal Posts 

£4,674 

 

Sheltons 

Field 

Higher Slide 

Four Tower Unit with two bridges 

Play and Stay with Net 

Crazy Scrambler Springer 

 

 

£18,431 

 TOTAL SPEND £23,105 

Page 2



Cabinet 
5 June 2019 

 

 
 

 
The Working Group met to evaluate the quotes and agreed that a spend of £23,105 
would provide the new equipment needed on both St John’s Park and Shelton’s Field.  A 
breakdown of the preferred quote is appended for reference at Appendix A.  The Group 
also proposed that £1,800 of the budget be set aside to support the cost of a 
replacement gate. 
 
The Group had previously discussed a bid to Boston Big Local (BBL) for a grant of 
£19,000 towards a Pirate Ship to be located at the Woodville Road Play Area.  BBL had 
since provisionally approved a grant, subject to Board approval, which would be known 
in April 2019.  The Working Group proposed the matching of the remaining £15,095 
against the BBL grant for provision of a Pirate Ship subject to further quotes being 
sought from Play Equipment Providers. 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Communities, who was also the Chairman of the 
Open Spaces Working Group, advised the meeting that BTAC had resolved to purchase 
the play area equipment following a thorough consultation carried out on-site by the Play 
& Physical Activity Officer; therefore, the equipment was specifically requested by the 
users of the play areas.  The sites had been chosen because they had had minimal 
upgrading in recent times and the expenditure would directly benefit residents of the 
Boston town area.   
 
Other Members commended the work of the Play & Physical Activity Officer and the 
proposals put forward.  It was remarked that this was a positive example of a change to 
a local funding mechanism, through BTAC, that was delivering services.   
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 

Page 3



 
7   QUARTER 4 REPORT - PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE 

 

 

DECISION 

1. To note the quarterly monitoring information for Q4. 

2. To agree the specific finance recommendations, summarised 
below: 

 F1: To approve the reserve movements as detailed in Table 6 

 F2: To approve the updated capital programme as detailed in 
Table 10 

 F3: To write-off the irrecoverable Sundry Debt in the sum of 
£5,850 

 F4: To approve the supplementary estimates in respect of High 
Street Community Clean Up, Local Authorities Parks Improving 
Funding, Rough Sleepers Initiative, Controlling Migration Fund 
and Rapid Rehousing Pathway, as detailed in table 14 

 F5: To approve the exemption in respect of the rough sleepers 
grant awards, namely the Rough Sleepers Initiative, the 
Controlling Migration Fund and the Rapid Rehousing Pathway 

 

Portfolio 

Holder 

and 

Officer 

 

Cllr 

Spencer 

 

SR/PJ 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 

The Portfolio Holder for Finance presented a report, which set out the quarterly 

performance, risk and finance monitoring information for the year April 2018 to March 

2019, as follows. 

 

Performance (Appendix A) 
 
Areas of success: 

 Turnaround of planning applications was on or above target for all categories 

 429 houses were completed against a target of 310 

 91 empty properties were returned into occupation against a target of 60 

 Turnaround of benefit and council tax support cases was consistently better than 
target 

 99% of local food businesses were broadly compliant with requirements 

 Car parking permit income was above budget 

 Sickness absence at 6.3 days compared to a target of 7 and last year’s outturn of 7.5 
 
Areas of concern: 

 Improved housing standards – 51 properties improved against a target of 200. 
Proactive work was ongoing but there had been recruitment difficulties. 

 Each household was generating an average of 553kg of residual waste compared to 
a target of 540kg. This reflected the regional and national trend and was being 
addressed by the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership.  

 72% of fly tips were responded to within 2 working days of being reported compared 

Page 4



Cabinet 
5 June 2019 

 

 
 

to a target of 85%. This was due to a 12% increase in the number of fly tips in Q4. 

 96% of business rates due had been collected in year against a target of 98%. This 
was due to a large local business going into administration during the year. 

 
Other items of note: 

 25% of domestic recycling was contaminated in March compared to a Lincolnshire 
average of 30%; the Council’s best performance all year and the lowest of all districts 
in March. 

 There was a 20% increase in commercial waste income 
 
Risks (Appendix B) 
 

 The appendix contained a summary of the strategic risks with the highest risks being 
housing and budget 

 The Local Plan risk had been removed as the Plan had now been adopted 

 The strategic risks would be reviewed alongside the Corporate Plan during 2019/20 
 

Finance (Appendix C) 
  

 The report set out the outturn position for last year for revenue and capital spending, 
and reserves; plus other finance-related information 

 Revenue: spend for the year was in line with the budget, mainly due to the small 
positive net variance being taken to reserves.  

 The detailed variances that made up the outturn position were set out, with the main 
areas of difference from the budget relating to the Property Fund initiative and 
movements to and from reserves 

 Controlling Migration Fund: around 40% of the had been spent by the year-end 

 Trading income overall was £101,000 below the budget, largely due to the new 
accounting requirement to recognise fees in the year to which the associated work 
would be undertaken.  

 Reserves: the position at the year-end showed a slightly higher than anticipated level 
of reserves being held, mainly as a result of slippage on the capital programme and 
the report contained a recommendation to approve the movements as set out. 

 Despite the ongoing low bank base rate, overall Treasury Management returns 
significantly exceeded the original budget figure, due to the £20m purchase of the 
new Property Fund holdings.  At the year-end the Council had borrowed £15.449m of 
Public Works and Loans Board loans to fund the purchase, with the remainder 
coming from cash balances. 

 Capital: the spend for the year was £21.4m. The main change from Quarter 3 was 
the actual spending on Disabled Facilities Grants. There was a recommendation to 
note and approve the updated capital programme, including slippage to this year. 

 Debt collection: there was one sundry debt write-off over £5,000 with a 
recommendation for Cabinet approval, following all necessary action to recover (a 
provision was held for bad debts). 

 There were some supplementary estimates for Cabinet approval, following the 
announcement of funding for a number of rough-sleeper initiatives and Government 
funding for community clean-up and parks improvements. 

 Insurance: positive news, with only one claim received in the quarter 

 Procurement exemptions: the award of the rough-sleeper monies was accompanied 

Page 5



by a request for Cabinet approval for procurement exemptions to enable the 
continuation of work already being provided in this area. 

 Business rates: concerns continued regarding the level of outstanding appeals and 
other decisions to reduce Rateable Values by the Valuation Office Agency, although 
the positive outcomes from the work of the Business Rates Assurance function were 
noted. 

 Council Tax Support: regular monitoring was undertaken and spend for last year was 
within the budgeted sum. 

 

In response to questions, officers explained that the number of taxi driver licenses 
suspended or revoked was significantly higher in 2017/18 due to the introduction of 
safeguarding training that drivers were obliged to undertake; those that did not attend 
the training had their licenses automatically suspended until they had completed the 
training. 
 
In terms of the costs of setting up borrowing, the figures had been included in the 
Council’s final accounts that had been submitted to the last meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 
 
Members comments included appreciation of compliments relating to front-line staff and 
the fact that the number of houses completed had been the highest for some years. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the Portfolio Holder’s suggestion that there be more engagement with 
individual Portfolio Holders in terms of future reporting of the quarterly monitoring 
information in order to provide more specific insight into their areas.  
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 

Alternative reporting arrangements. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 

Page 6



Cabinet 
5 June 2019 

 

 
 

 
8   BUSINESS RATES PILOT FUNDS 

 

 

DECISION 

 

1. That the sum of £388,000, retained locally as part of the 2018/19 
pilot initiative, be noted. 

 
2. That £18,500 be approved to fund the Electric Vehicle Charging 

Project and authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive, 
in consultation with the Leader, for any amendments to be 
considered following the award of the grant. 

 
3. That £100,000 be approved as a Relocation Incentive Fund to 

attract inward investment to the Borough and authority be 
delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the 
Chief Finance Officer and Leader, to agree the criteria and 
application process. 

 
4. That the allocation of £100,000 be approved to a fund to support 

the Business Nurture and Business Enable Schemes and authority 
be delegated to the Economic Development Manager to make 
awards in accordance with the procedures set out in the body of 
the report, in consultation with the Leader and Chief Finance 
Officer. 

 
5. That authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive to make 

minor amendments to the procedures and criteria relating to 
applications to the Business Nurture and Business Enable 
Schemes, in consultation with the Leader. 

 
6. That £800 be approved to support Lincolnshire County Council 

skills initiative to create Enterprise Advisers to link Schools and 
Business. 

 
7. That up to £25,000 be allocated to High Street technology in 

accordance with the provisions set out in the body of the report 
and authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the Leader, as to which projects should be 
supported. 

 
8. That future updates on all proposals be received as part of the 

regular quarterly monitoring process. 
 

Portfolio 

Holder 

and 

Officer 

 

Cllr 

Cooper 

 

MS 

 

Page 7



 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 

The Leader introduced a report regarding Business Rates Pilot Funds.  The Department 

of Communities and Local Government (now the MHCLG) had sought pilot areas as part 

of the business rates localisation initiative and Lincolnshire was a successful applicant 

for pilot status in 2018/19.  

 
Under the this scheme, Lincolnshire authorities had worked in partnership, on a 
voluntary basis, giving them scope to generate additional business through collaborative 
effort and to smooth the impact of volatility in rates income across a wider economic 
area.   
 
The report set out where Boston’s fund was to be directed to support increasing 
economic activity within the Borough, in line with the pilot’s bid proposals. 
 
The Business Rates Localisation Pilot in 2018/19 had provided a real opportunity to fund 
a variety of projects the Council would not normally have resources to fund and would 
help deliver the objectives of the Corporate Plan and Economic Development Plan, 
whilst promoting strong links with stakeholders. 
 

1.1 The Economic Development Manager had researched and sourced a variety of projects 
devised to promote and deliver improved economic activity within the Borough of 
Boston, including one-off projects that might have an immediate impact, together with 
longer term projects that would build upon and enhance existing skills within the 
Borough’s workforce.   

1.2  
1.3 There were many projects in the pipeline that had demonstrable benefits to the wider 

community and these were set out in detail in the report: 
 

 Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Points 

 Relocation Incentive 

 Entrepreneurial Support Programmes 

 The Enable Fund 

 The Nurture Fund 

 Support Enterprise Advisers 

 High Street Technology  

 Primary Engineer 
 

The Leader introduced a report regarding Business Rates Pilot Funds.  The Department 
of Communities and Local Government (now the MHCLG) had sought pilot areas as part 
of the business rates localisation initiative and Lincolnshire was a successful applicant 
for pilot status under the scheme, the Business Rates Localisation Pilot, in 2018/19.  
Lincolnshire authorities had worked in partnership, on a voluntary basis, giving them 
scope to generate additional business through collaborative effort and to smooth the 
impact of volatility in rates income across a wider economic area.   
 
The report set out where Boston’s fund was to be directed to support increasing 
economic activity within the Borough, in line with the pilot’s bid proposals.  The pilot had 

Page 8



Cabinet 
5 June 2019 

 

 
 

provided a real opportunity to fund a variety of projects the Council would not normally 
have resources to fund and would help deliver the objectives of the Corporate Plan and 
Economic Development Plan, whilst promoting strong links with stakeholders. 
 

The Economic Development Manager had researched and sourced a variety of projects 
devised to promote and deliver improved economic activity within the Borough of 
Boston, including one-off projects that might have an immediate impact, together with 
longer-term projects that would build upon and enhance existing skills within the 
Borough’s workforce.   
 
There were many projects in the pipeline that had demonstrable benefits to the wider 
community and these were set out in detail in the report: 
 

 Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Points 

 Relocation Incentive 

 Entrepreneurial Support Programmes 

 The Enable Fund 

 The Nurture Fund 

 Support Enterprise Advisers 

 High Street Technology  

 Primary Engineer 
 

Members remarked on the fact that the Government had not chosen to allow authorities 
to continue into the current year with the pilot scheme, but felt it was very positive that 
the Council had retained £388,000 from the 2018/19 scheme to be used to support 
businesses in the area, particularly small businesses, and encourage new investment 
including large businesses.  A significant amount of work had been carried out to 
research the proposed projects and the amount retained would make a significant 
difference.  It would be important to promote news of available funds.   
 
Further comments included welcoming the EV Charging Points project, but also that 
work needed to be carried out on an Environmental Policy to ensure it was planned, 
concise and performed well within the Council’s budgets in order that the Council was 
influencing and carrying out what it could.   
 
Members discussed the importance of their being kept informed of progress and agreed 
that the final recommendation in the report should be proposed in wording to ensure that 
updates on all proposed projects be included in the quarterly monitoring reports.  It was 
noted that the Chairman of the Environment and Performance Committee would be 
recommending that the Committee should consider adding scrutiny of projects to its 
work programme, following which reports would be submitted to Cabinet, and that 
targets would be set in terms of project outcomes.   
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 

There are several projects detailed in the body of the report and there remains some 
unallocated funds. The projects are under constant review to ensure they provide value 

Page 9



for money and maximise the benefits for the wider Borough. 
 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
 
9   APPOINTMENTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 

 

 

DECISION 

 

That the appointments to the external organisations set out in the 
Appendix to the report be approved; such appointments to hold good 
only whilst the appointees remain Members of the Borough Council, 
until the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until the appointment 
of their successors.  

 

Portfolio 

Holder 

and 

Officer 

 

Cllr 

Cooper 

 

LB 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 

The Leader presented a report, which set out details of appointments to external 
organisations that were the responsibility of Cabinet to make.   
 
Several of the positions were those to which the relevant Portfolio Holder was appointed 
automatically (ex officio).   
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 

Not to make appointments to the external organisations appended to the report. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

Page 10



Cabinet 
5 June 2019 

 

 
 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 10.40 am 
 

 

Signed by the Chief Executive  
 
       
 
 

6 June 2019 

 
 

 
 

 
These decisions will come into force (and may then be implemented) on the expiry of 
five clear working days after the date of this notice UNLESS the decisions are 
subjected to the Call-In procedure or are starred minutes requiring Full Council 
approval.  
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 17 JULY 2019 

SUBJECT: TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME – REFRESH  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

REPORT AUTHOR: CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Council’s current Transformation Programme (TP) runs from 2016/17 to 2019/20, and 
covers the period of the Government’s four-year settlement.  
 
This report sets out proposals for a refresh of the TP to meet the challenges of the projected 
budget position for the next four years, and the need to make net budget savings of almost 
£1m. Following a period of consultation, through the Scrutiny process and the public, it will 
be brought back to the Cabinet for review and then to Council for approval in September.  
 
An update to the TP will show how the Council intends to meet future financial challenges, 
demonstrating that it has plans for the coming years to meet the projected budget gaps.  

 
 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
That Cabinet reviews and recommends the proposed Transformation Programme for 
consultation prior to it coming back to Cabinet for reconsideration, and then recommendation 
to Full Council for formal approval. 

 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

REPORT:  

 
1     INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The Council has had a Transformation Programme (TP) for a number of years, which 

has helped it identify and deliver projects designed to improve performance and make 
financial savings to meet the challenge of reducing resources across the local 
government sector.  

 
1.2 The nature and scale of further transformation requires an early and clear direction to 

provide the best chance of success. If agreed, a programme covering four years would 
limit the need for more difficult decisions in the future.  
 

2 DETAILS  
 
2.1 The current TP runs until the end of the current financial year, in line with the 

Government’s four-year settlement deal. Now is, therefore, an appropriate time to 
consider a refresh of the programme. Appendix 1 sets out the draft programme, which, 
following today’s meeting, will be issued for general consultation on the projects 
included within it. This will allow the Council to demonstrate that it has robust plans to 
save money and live within its means in the coming years.  

 
2.2 The current TP has helped the Council reduce its annual budget by over £2.5m, with 

initiatives including the relocation of the DWP and other partners, Parish Council/BTAC 
support, and sharing services. 
 

2.3 The draft programme is arranged within four main themes, and it is important to point 
out that, whilst the way that services are organised is likely to change, the TP does not 
propose the absolute removal of any of the range of services currently being delivered.  

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Council has operated a Transformation Programme (TP) for some years, enabling it to 
demonstrate the ways in which it intends to meet the anticipated financial challenges facing it. 
This has proved successful, and with the current TP ending in 2019/20, and future significant 
savings targets expected, it is appropriate for a refreshed TP to be adopted. 
 
In addition, the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) approved alongside the budget in 
February 2019 projects a cumulative budget gap of almost £1m to 2023/24 if no action is taken. 
This report sets out a series of actions that it is anticipated would deliver annual balanced 
budgets, in accordance with legal requirements.  
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
The Council could choose not to refresh its Transformation Programme. However, this would 
mean that annual decisions would be required to ensure that the Council was able to meet its 
statutory requirement to set a balanced budget each year, without a framework within which 
those decisions would be made.  
 

Page 14



 

2.4 As a reminder, the projected 2020/21 budget gap is over £0.5m, rising to almost 
£0.9m by 2023/24, as set out in the table below.  

 
Table 1 – projected future budget gaps (February 2019 MTFS) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.5 There are a number of uncertainties at present in respect of funding levels from 

2020/21, including the proposed Spending Review, Government initiatives to revise the 
funding distribution formula, and the further localisation of business rates. Their 
resolution will inevitably amend future years’ budget gaps, but what is certain is that 
there will be savings’ requirements. The refresh of the TP is therefore appropriate and 
necessary. 

 
2.6 The four themes within the proposed TP refresh are – 

 
 Commercialisation  

 Service Modernisation  

 Income Generation  

 Policy Changes  
 
2.7 These build on the success of the current TP, and aim to retain the breadth of current 

services whilst making the budgetary decisions necessary to balance annual spending 
plans. 

 
2.8 At this stage the indicative savings figure across the next four years is £1m, although 

it is accepted that this will be refined and will change as more detailed work is 
undertaken on specific projects, and the figures then incorporated into future budgets. 
As set out in paragraph 2.4, the Council has a forecast requirement to reduce its net 
budget by almost £1m per annum by 2023/24.  

 
2.9 The timetable for consultation and approval is set out below.  

 

 

17 July 2019  Cabinet recommends draft TP for consultation, and public 
consultation begins 

23 August 2019  Public consultation ends 

5 September 2019  Scrutiny (C & C) Committee reviews the draft proposals 

11 September 2019  Cabinet receives feedback from the consultation 
exercises, and recommends the TP to Council 

23 September 2019  Full Council approves and adopts the TP, including any 
specific first year proposals 

 

 

2.10 Provisional settlement figures for 2020/21 are not expected until later this year, and 
therefore the specific timing and number of projects to be included next year will not be 
finalised until the draft budget proposals for next year are presented early in 2020.  

 
 

Year 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Forecast budget gap - annual 538 10 86 253 

Forecast budget gap – cumulative 538 548 634 887 

Page 15



 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The report itself creates no additional resource requirements at this time. However, some 
projects within it will need funds to enable progress and delivery (one-off funds will come from 
the Transformation Reserve), and future reports setting out the funds needed will be presented 
as projects are worked up.  
 

 

 
LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires councils to set a balanced budget each year. 
 
Equality impacts will be considered as part of progressing each project, as necessary. 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There will be implications for service delivery arising from some projects, and these will be 
included in reports in due course as projects are developed. 
  
Subject to the Transformation Programme being agreed by Full Council, it is reasonable to 
anticipate future employment changes which will require careful management to mitigate both 
costs and implications for staff.  
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation with the Council’s Scrutiny Members, and the public, on the broad aspects of the 
Transformation Programme will commence after this meeting, and the responses will be 
brought to the Cabinet meeting on 11 September 2019.  
 
In addition, specific consultation processes will be undertaken for projects where it is deemed 
that this is appropriate. 
 
 
APPENDICES  
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: -  
 
APPENDIX 1  

 
Proposed Transformation Programme - 
2020/21 to 2023/24 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were 
used in the production of this report.  
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF REPORT  
 
There are no previous reports on the refresh of the Transformation Programme 

Page 16



 

 
FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:   
 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - REFRESH 
REPORT DATE: 17 JULY 2019 
 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
      
 
 

     

      

Total Revenue 
Cost 

     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  Date:  
Total capital cost 
 

£0 
 
 

   

Revenue cost 
 

£0  Cabinet  17 July 
2019 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. Following approval, as 
specific projects are worked up, reports will include financial implications.  
 
Risk 
 
 
Procurement 
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
 
 
 
 

This FP is valid for 3 months 
from FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 
advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 

be reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Transformation programme 2020/21 to 2023/24 - draft proposals

Ref Theme Title Description Total Portfolio Holder

£000

TP01 Commercialisation Work for business
Utilise capacity of assets by undertaking work for partners 

and local businesses
10 Environmental

TP02 Commercialisation Sell services Offer Inspection works to partners and others 10 Environmental

TP03 Commercialisation
Increase current market 

share

Effective marketing and delivery of quality services to 

customers
40 Environmental

Theme: Commercialisation 60

TP04 Service Modernisation Regulatory Services review To reduce the net cost of services 70 Regulatory

TP05 Service Modernisation Corporate Services review To reduce the net cost of services 40 Leader

TP06 Service Modernisation Finance review To reduce the net cost of services 30 Finance

TP07 Service Modernisation
Housing and Regulatory 

services review
To reduce the net cost of services 70

Housing / 

Regulatory

TP08 Service Modernisation
Sport, Culture and Town 

Centre review
To reduce the net cost of services 80 Deputy Leader

TP09 Service Modernisation
Environmental Services 

review
To reduce the net cost of services 80 Environmental

Theme: Service Modernisation 370

TP10 Policy changes
Continue work with 

parishes and others
Further cost sharing 30 Environmental

TP11 Policy changes
Increase Council Tax for 

long term empty properties

Incentivise bringing back into use, in line with Government 

policy 
10 Finance

TP12 Policy changes Revise healthy activity work Reduce healthy activity support 10 Leader

TP13 Policy changes Review collection rates Reduce irrecoverable amounts 50 Finance

TP14 Policy changes
Revenue contribution to 

capital
Reduce annual support for capital spending 200 Finance

Theme: Policy changes 300

TP15 Income generation
Environmental Operations 

Fees
Review of charging structure 220 Environmental

TP16 Income generation Other Fees Benchmarking review 50 Town Centre

Theme: Income generation 270

Total Savings 1,000   

This programme identifies a number of projects that would be delivered to help the Council achieve the projected £1million saving required over the next 

four years. The savings identified at this stage are likely to change as the projects develop. These projects will be under continuous review and other 

projects may be introduced as opportunities are identified. Many of the projects require public and/or stakeholder consultation. Alongside this 

programme, the Council will seek to ensure every service currently provided continues in a more effective and efficient way for local people.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 17 JULY 2019 

SUBJECT: BOSTON ALTERNATIVE ENERGY FACILITY 
CONSULTATION SUBMISSION 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR YVONNE STEVENS  

REPORT AUTHOR: DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

EXEMPT REPORT NO 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Council is a consultee in the planning process to determine if the proposed 
Boston Alternative Energy Facility is approved. As a National Significant 
Infrastructure Project, the application is determined by the Secretary of State 
following a Planning Inquiry headed up by a Planning Inspector. 
 
The proposal is a state-of-the-art power-generation plant, which the developers 
present as leading the way in land-based renewable power across the UK. 
 
This project will generate 102MW of renewable energy, of which 80MW will be 
exported to the National Grid and the rest will be used by the facility. Electricity will 
be generated in a secure, clean and affordable way. 
 
This project creates the potential for significant economic development opportunities 
linked to the supply chain to support the plant and potential end users of the by-
products. In addition, the proposals create opportunities for the Borough Council to 
work with the County Council through the Strategic Waste Partnership to consider 
alternative ways to manage waste. However, there are many planning and 
environmental health factors to consider having regard to the nature of the proposals. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Delegate to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and 
Portfolio Holders for Economic Development and Environment, to finalise the 
consultation submission. 
 
 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Borough Council continues to liaise with the agent of the applicant to seek further 
clarification and understanding of the proposals, whilst officers continue to work with 
the County Council to consider the impact of the proposed development balanced 
with opportunity that the scheme would bring to the Borough, which will influence the 
final submission, at this stage required by the 6th August 2019. 
 
 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
As set out in the body of the report. 
 
 

 

REPORT 
 

1.0  Introduction 
 
1.1 The Boston Alternative Energy Facility is a state-of-the-art power generation 
 plant that will generate 102 MW (gross) of renewable energy that will deliver 
 approximately 80 MW (net) to the National Grid. The energy recovery plant will 
 be a gasification facility. This cutting-edge technology contributes to the UK 
 Government’s target of generating at least 15% of energy from renewable 
 sources, including energy from waste, by 2020. The facility is considered to be 
 an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) development for the purposes of 
 the ‘The Infrastructure Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
 Regulations 2017’ (the EIA Regulations). 
 
1.2 The energy recovery plant will process one million tonnes of refuse-derived 
 fuel (RDF) as the feedstock (i.e. the fuel) to generate energy. The RDF will 
 be sourced from UK suppliers and will comprise residual waste (i.e. ‘black  bag 
 waste’) from householders that has not been segregated for recycling. 
 Therefore, the facility will not use any source-segregated waste that can be 
 recycled. 
 
1.3 The proposed facility is a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP) 
 because it will have a generation capacity over 50 MW of energy. This means 
 it requires a Development Consent Order (DCO) under the Planning Act 2008. 
 The DCO application will be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate (PINS), 
 who will determine the application on behalf of the Secretary of State. The 
 Boston Alternative Energy Facility is currently in the pre-application stage of 
 the DCO process. 
 
1.4 The project is at a stage where the Environmental Statement (ES) has been 
 prepared, which provides a summary of the project, the site selection process 
 and key preliminary findings of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). 

Page 22



 

 

 
2.0 The Proposed Development  
 

2.1 The proposed facility is to be located at the Riverside Industrial Estate, 
 Boston, Lincolnshire adjacent to the tidal River Witham (known as The Haven) 
 and down river from the Port of Boston. 
 
2.2 The facility is a power generation plant that will generate 102 MW (gross) of 
 renewable energy that will deliver approximately 80 MW (net) to the National 
 Grid. 
 
2.3 The RDF sent to the facility will be used to generate energy. The process for 

generating power is called gasification. 
 
2.4 The facility will comprise the following main elements: 
 

 Wharf and associated infrastructure (including re-baling facility, 
 workshop, transformer pen and welfare facilities); 
 

 RDF bale storage areas, including sealed drainage with mobile plant 
 for transferring bales; 
 

 Conveyor system between the RDF storage area and the RDF 
 processing building part of which is open and part of which is under 
 cover (including thermal cameras); 
 

 RDF processing building and associated infrastructure (including 
 photovoltaic roof panels, conveyor system to storage silos, ‘fines’ de-
 stoning plant, water tanks and transformer pen); 
 

 Processed RDF storage silos and ‘metered’ conveyor system into the 
 gasification plant and liquid nitrogen silos; 
 

 Gasification plant comprising three separate 34 MW gasification lines 
 and associated ductwork  and piping, transformer pens, diesel 
 generators and stack; 
 

 Turbine plant comprising three steam turbine engines, make-up water f
 acility and associated piping and ductwork; 
 

 Air-cooled condenser structure, transformer pen and associated piping 
 and ductwork; 
 

 Lightweight Aggregate (LWA) manufacturing plant comprising four kiln 
 lines, two filter banks with stacks, storage silos, a dedicated berthing 
 point at the wharf, silt storage and drainage facility, clay storage and 
 drainage facility, LWA workshop, interceptor tank, LWA control room, 
 aggregate storage facility and plant for loading aggregate / offloading 
 clay and silt; 
 

Page 23



 

 

 Electrical export infrastructure; 
 

 Carbon dioxide (CO2) recovery plant and associated infrastructure, 
 including chiller unit; and 
 

 Associated site infrastructure, including site roads, pedestrian routes, 
 car parking, site workshops and storage, security gate, control room 
 with visitor centre and site weighbridge. 

 

3.0 Project Need 
 

3.1 The need that exists for new power generating infrastructure, such as the 
 proposed Boston Alternative Energy Facility is confirmed in National Policy 
 Statements (NPS). These NPSs are used by the Secretary of State to make 
 decisions on nationally significant energy infrastructure like this facility. 
 
3.2 The relevant NPSs (EN-1 and EN-3) establish an urgent and substantial need 
 for new energy generation infrastructure, with the desire for it to be renewable 
 or low carbon to achieve climate change targets. 
 
3.3 There were many reasons for choosing gasification as the technology process 
 for the facility including economies of scale; diversion of waste from landfill 
 and abroad and the potential for carbon dioxide capture for reuse. 
 
3.4 The applicants are mindful of the current waste situation in respect of UK 
 waste being treated overseas, the impact of the restriction of waste exports
 into far eastern countries and dwindling UK landfill capacity. These factors 
 were key drivers for the applicant to seek to capture exported or landfilled 
 RDF, and to develop the cleanest, most efficient plant possible. 
 
4.0 Site Selection 
 

4.1 The facility is considered appropriate as the location is identified as 
appropriate in the Lincolnshire County Council’s Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan as well as having other local planning policy support. 

 
4.2 Other reasons 
 

 The location is directly adjacent to a navigable watercourse that 
 provides a means of delivery of RDF and export of materials, which 
 significantly reduces the amount of road vehicle trips; 
 

 There is sufficient footprint to accommodate the required plant and 
 equipment for the facility; 
 

 It is considered technically feasible to connect to the electricity 
 distribution network on site; 
 

 The site is not directly situated within any environmental designation. It 
 is within a flood zone, however it benefits from flood defences; and 

Page 24



 

 

 

 It is located within an existing urban/industrialised environment, with an 
 existing biomass gasification plant located next door. 

 
5.0 Proposed Construction and Use of the Facility 
 
5.1 The overall construction period will be at worst case 48 months from 2021 to 
 2025 and it is expected that there will be between 250-300 construction jobs
 at peak construction. Construction is expected to take place six days a week 
 (Monday to Saturday) between the times of 8am to 8pm, with options to work 
 7am to 7pm, with no work taking place on bank holidays or public holidays. 
 
5.2 Details of construction phasing and proposed construction methods are in the 
 process of being developed and no further details are available at this point in 
 time.  
 
5.3 Both the County Council and the Borough Council are seeking further 
 information as this is pertinent to the consultation responses. 
 
6.0 The Wharf 
 
6.1 The wharf will be built, replacing sections on the current flood defence bank 
 and will comprise the quay wall, the main area of the wharf, which will also 
 provide the flood defence line, and an area behind the wharf for associated 
 infrastructure. The wharf facility will include a berthing pocket to allow ships to 
 safely dock at the wharf without restricting the navigable channel of The 
 Haven. The birthing pocket will be constructed by dredging and excavating the 
 mud flats and land edge using land based equipment.  
 
6.2 Arriving vessels must navigate up The Haven to the proposed birth over high 
 tide and leave over the next high tide. The river is not wide enough to turn a 
 vessel at the proposed wharf. It is anticipated that vessels will be turned at the 
 Port of Boston, either at the ‘Knuckle’ point-turning circle outside the Wet Dock 
 or within the Wet Dock.  
 
6.3 The wharf will comprise a 400-metre long docking facility, loading and 
 offloading equipment and access / egress ramp. The wharf will have two births 
 for receiving the RDF feedstock, and one birth for loading aggregate and 
 receiving sediment and clay (which are required for the LWA plant). 
 
6.4 Approximately 624 ships per year will be required, which represents 11 per 
 week. 
 
7.0 The RDF Storage and Preparation 
 
7.1 Six silos would be constructed and following their construction, the RDF 
 storage and processing plant would be constructed. 
 
7.2 The facility will receive up to approximately 1,300,000 tonnes of RDF per 
 year, which is to be shipped in plastic wrapped bales. The RDF will comprise 

Page 25



 

 

 of residual waste collections from householders. The bales will be labelled to 
 identify the source of the RDF and location and date of baling. The material 
 will be sent to the facility from ports most likely located on the East coast of 
 the UK. The bales will be brick-shaped and have and anticipated volume of 
 1.85 m3, weighing approx. 1.3 to 1.5 tonnes. 
 
7.3 Once the RDF feedstock has been offloaded from the vessels, it is moved to a 

temporary storage area. The storage area will be in the open and will 
accommodate approximately four to five days-worth of RDF  (approximately 
12,600 tonnes), based on the rate of daily flow of processed  feedstock 
through the gasification facility. 

 
7.4 It is anticipated that 20% of the RDF material is not suitable for gasification 
 (such as metal, stones, glass). This will segregated out in the RDF feedstock 
 processing building, leaving 1,000,000 tonnes of processed RDF that is 
 suitable to generate energy. 
 
7.5 The RDF processing building will operate in a closed environment using odour 
 control measures to ensure no unacceptable odour is released. 
 
7.6 Ferrous and non-ferrous metals will be removed, collected in separate skips 
 and sent for processing off-site. 
 
7.7 Medium and heavy inert metals such as stones and glass will also be 
 removed. Some of this material is suitable for processing in the lightweight 
 aggregate plant and the remainder is to be sent off-site for recycling. 
 
7.8 The process RDF will be transferred via sealed conveyor to the storage silos. 
 There are to be six in total and each capable of storing 48,000m3 of processed 
 RDF. The RDF is transferred from the silos to the gasification plant in metered
 quantities. 
 
8.0 The Gasification Plant 
 
8.1 A total of three gasifiers are to be constructed in three phases with the 
 western most being the first (Line 1), then the eastern most (Line 3) and then 
 Line 2. 
 
8.2 Gasification is a method of generating energy. It does not involve direct 

combustion of the processed RDF; hence the facility is not a traditional 
incinerator. 

 
8.3 In the gasification zone; the processed RDF will be broken down in a hot 
 (approximately 800 degree C) environment which has limited oxygen, and
 prevents the processed RDF from combusting (burning). Instead, the 
 processed RDF is converted into a gas. 
 
8.4 The gas then flows to a hotter part of the plant called the thermal oxidation 

zone, at which point more air is injected that causes the gas to ignite. In the 

Page 26



 

 

thermal oxidation zone the temperature of the gas is over 950 degree C, which 
causes potential contaminants to break down. 

 
8.5 The hot gas is sent to the boiler section of the plant for heat recovery where 
 steam is generated. The steam is routed to the turbines to generate power. 
 
8.6 The cooled exhaust gas goes to the pollution control system where  chemicals 

are injected to capture any residual emissions. The final stage is a bag filter, 
which will filter the ash / dust emissions from the combusted  waste gas. The 
residual air pollution residues (APC residues) will be collected in a hopper and 
are used on site to make aggregate. 

 
8.7 The cleaned gases will flow to the stack (there will be one stack per three 
 gasification units), via a Continuous Monitoring System  (CEMS). 
 
8.8 After the energy in the steam turbine is released for electricity production, the 
 cooled steam will be routed to the air-cooled condenser where it is cooled 
 further and turned back into water. 
 
9.0 The Lightweight Aggregate Plant (LWA) 
 
9.1 The ash and APC residues from the gasification plant will be processed on 
 site to produce a lightweight construction aggregate pellet, which is a 
 marketable product. This product will be exported by ship via a dedicated 
 berth at the wharf. 
 
9.2 Clay and or silt will be used in the process primarily as a binder to give 
 strength to the pellet. Clay is sourced from the south east of England and 
 transported to the site via ship. The silt will be dredged from The Haven, 
 subject to the relevant permissions. 
 
9.3 The LWA plant will have four lines. 
 
10.0 The CO2 Recovery Plant 
 
10.1 The CO2 from the recovery plant will be food-grade and may be used by 

various industries. 
 
11.0 Departmental Comments and Supplementary Questions 

 
11.1 There are several strands within the Borough Council that have professional 
 comments to be submitted as part of the process and these are set out in 
 Appendix 1, together with supplementary questions that have arisen through 
 the process. The list of these questions is not exhaustive and it is likely that 
 more will emerge over the remaining period of time left within the consultation 
 period. 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

 

12.0 CONCLUSION 
 
12.1 The previous consultation exercise generated positive feedback from the 
 agents acting on behalf of the applicant – many of the points that were raised 
 were acknowledged and incorporated, such as the Visitor Centre that was 
 suggested to mirror that which the Environment Agency provided for the 
 barrier project. 
 
12.2 This exercise enables the Council as a consultee to make further comment 
 and seek clarity on outstanding issues to continue to influence any final 
 proposal in a positive way for the benefit of the residents of Boston Borough 
 as a whole. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report as the Council is a 
consultee at this stage of the process. 

 
 

LEGAL AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
As a statutory consultee, the Council provides comment and feedback to a planning 
process that will be determined by the Secretary of State in accordance with the 
provisions of the Planning Act 2008, as amended by the Localism Act 2011. 
 
Due to the size and nature of the project, there will be a detailed equality assessment 
prepared by the applicant. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Officers have attended various meetings held as Phase 3 of the consultation stage. 
The Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services has also been in attendance. 
 
The Cabinet has responsibility for the final submission and the matter would normally 
be considered by the Environment and Performance Scrutiny Committee before 
consideration by the Cabinet. Due to the timing of the consultation period, this has 
not been possible, and the matter will be considered by the Scrutiny Committee on 
the 30th July 2019. The comments made by the Committee will be considered by the 
Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and relevant Portfolio 
Holders as set out in the recommendations.  
 

Page 28



 

 

 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX 1 Draft Consultation Response 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Information available on the Boston Alternative Energy Facility website. 
 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 – Draft Consultation Response 

 

Boston Alternative Energy Facility 
25 Priestgate  
Peterborough 
PE1 1JL 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Re: Boston Borough Council Consultation in Respect of Phase 3 for Boston 
Alternative Energy Facility 
 
We are pleased to set out below our detailed response to the proposals in respect of 
the above. 
 
We are minded there are several strands within the Borough Council who will have a 
professional view and in addition, both the Cabinet and the Environmental and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee have reviewed the draft proposals and have made 
comments. 
 
The Borough Council is keen to work with the applicant to contribute at this early 
stage to ensure that in the event the Secretary of State determines to approve the 
application, all aspects have been robustly considered to ensure maximum economic 
benefit to the wider community whilst protecting the environment from traffic, noise 
and harm to the ecosystems surrounding the proposed site. 
 
We have set out below a summary of our departmental comments with a concluding 
paragraph of outstanding questions. Many of the issues we have raised, such as 
impact of traffic on the wider area, require greater clarification before any application 
is submitted to the Secretary of State. We welcome ongoing dialogue to enable such 
issues to have this clarity and suggest that noting the size and scale of the proposed 
development there is an extension of time to the deadline of the 6th August 2019 
consultation period. We believe this will ensure that we are better able to consider 
Joint Statements of Common Ground in readiness for any Inquiry. 
 
Waste Strategy 
 
The Waste Strategy for Lincolnshire was adopted by the Lincolnshire Waste 
Partnership (LWP) in January 2019. This followed a period of extensive public 
consultation during the summer of 2018 and adoption by each *individual partner 
member of the LWP through their democratic process. The Waste Strategy for 
Lincolnshire was adopted by Boston Borough Council on 28th November 2018.  
 
*{LWP is made up of the Lincolnshire County Council, as waste disposal authority and 
the 7 district/borough councils as waste collection authorities}.  
 

Page 31



On the basis that the BAEF could process residual household waste from Lincolnshire, 
this proposal could support delivery of 4 out of 10 strategic objectives in the Waste 
Strategy for Lincolnshire: 
 
Objective 4: To explore new opportunities of promoting waste minimisation and of 
using all waste as a resource in accordance with the waste hierarchy. 
 
Objective 7: To seek to reduce our carbon footprint. 
 
Objective 8: To make an objective assessment of what further waste 
processing/disposal capacity is required and, as necessary, secure appropriate 
capacity. 
 
Objective 10: To consider appropriate innovative solution to the delivery of our waste 
management services. 
 
The current disposal facility for residual municipal waste in Lincolnshire, an Energy 
from Waste (EFW) plant located in North Hykeham, Lincoln, is forecast to reach its 
operational capacity in the next 5 years. Lincolnshire County Council, who are 
responsible for the disposal/treatment of the county’s municipal waste, have yet to 
publish a coherent strategy for dealing with the treatment of the county’s residual 
waste once this capacity shortfall is met. Landfill is not an option within the geography 
of Lincolnshire and no longer presents a financially viable or environmentally 
acceptable method for disposal of municipal waste in the long term.  
 
Whilst the Waste Strategy for Lincolnshire is driving action across the LWP to mitigate 
the impact of increasing residual waste volumes, population and household growth in 
the county, these actions are unlikely to be sufficient in themselves or delivered quickly 
enough to mitigate the forecast capacity short fall at the EfW in the longer term.  
 
If the proposed BAEF could process residual household waste from the south east of 
the county (Boston, East Lindsey, South Holland and North Kesteven District 
Councils), it would offer a new disposal and treatment option for the county and would 
future proof the capacity of the EfW facility in Lincolnshire for many years to come. By 
diverting waste in the south of the county away from the EfW, development of 
additional waste processing infrastructure in the county can be substantially delayed 
or even eliminated. 
 
BAEF could also meet several other strategic objectives by providing an innovative 
solution to municipal waste processing and treatment, using waste as a resource by 
converting it to energy and valuable commodities such as carbon dioxide and 
aggregate and could substantially reduce the carbon footprint of our current 
countywide waste management arrangements by eliminating road haulage of waste 
from the south of the county to Lincoln.  There will also be a significant and positive 
impact on the county’s recycling rate as recyclable material will be removed from the 
residual waste stream by screening, prior to being processed in the gasification facility. 
The recyclable content of the residual waste stream is forecast to be in the region of 
20% hence its removal for recovery prior to processing will provide a significant boost 
to the countywide recycling objective as well as the national recycling targets 

Page 32



contained in the HM Government: Our Waste, Our Resources: Strategy for England 
published in 2018.   
  
Finally, the location of the Lincolnshire County Council owned and operated waste 
transfer station, on Nursery Road, Riverside Industrial Estate, Boston, Lincolnshire, 
PE21 7TN is ideally situated adjacent to the proposed development site of the BAEF 
to offer the opportunity for the bulking, baling and direct transfer of municipal waste, 
collected from households in Boston, East Lindsey and South Holland districts, into 
the proposed BAEF site for treatment. This will serve to divert waste away from the 
EfW facility in Lincoln and will substantially reduce residual waste haulage costs and 
the countywide waste management carbon footprint.  
 
Development Management 
 
The proposed Alternative Energy Facility by processing waste by a gasification 
process as described above would appear to be an acceptable and appropriate use 
for the site selected. Whether it is classed as B2 or Sui Generis use would be decision 
that is made later in the process. However, currently the proposal is considered 
acceptable in context with the Lincolnshire County Council Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan.  
 
In terms of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan a B2 use is appropriate given it is 
an allocated employment site. A Sui Generis use and the development in the 
Countryside would need to be justified on the basis “of other material consideration”. 
 
The benefits that could accrue from the gasification process would mean less waste 
is directed to land fill sites or elsewhere. It does not need to burn coal or gas to help 
create the energy to produce the electricity. The residue from the combustion process 
is recycled into products that have an economic value at the end of the process. 
 
The whole process from construction to end use would provide a facility that provided 
employment opportunities across the whole spectrum, including construction jobs and 
end user jobs, some of which may be specialised. 
 
There appears to be a case for the need of such a facility and based on the planning 
history locally around this site this may be a suitable location given the delivery of 
material to the site would be by water and not by vehicles. 
 
The energy produced would not only be a benefit across Boston but the whole East 
Midlands Region and nationally, given the electricity produce will be added to the 
national grid. 
 
However, given the stage we are currently at, it is not possible to assess the project 
against the policies of the adopted Local Plan. There are no plans of the proposed 
structures to view and assess only simple written descriptions. 
 
Planning Policy 
 
Policy 7: “Improving South East Lincolnshire’s Employment Land Portfolio” of the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan allocates the Riverside industrial estate, shown 

Page 33



below in purple or crosshatched, as B1, B2 and B8. The Boston Alternative Energy 
Facility site is shown with a black line and extends over land shown allocated for 
employment land and countryside.  
 
The policy also allows new employment development outside the allocated 
employment site provided: 
 
a. the development does not conflict with neighbouring land uses; 

 
b. there is no significant adverse impact upon the character and appearance of the 

area;  
 

c. the design is responsive to the local context; 
 

d. there will be no significant adverse impact on the local highway network; 
 

e. there will be no significant adverse impact upon the viability of delivering any 
allocated employment site; 

 
f. proposals maximising opportunities for modal shift away from the private car are 

demonstrated; and 
 

g. there is an identified need for the business location outside of identified employment 
areas on the Policies Map. 

 

  

Page 34



The Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan - Core Strategy and Development 
Management Policies contains Policy W3: “Spatial Strategy for New Waste Facilities”. 
It supports proposals for new waste facilities in Boston, as well as other settlements in 
Lincolnshire.  Policy W4: “Locational Criteria for New Waste Facilities in and around 
main urban areas” supports new waste facilities as set out in W3 provided that they 
would be located on: 
 

 Previously developed and/or contaminated land; or 

 Existing or planned industrial / employment land and buildings; or 

 Land already in waste management use; or 

 Sites allocated in the Site Locations Document; or 

 In the case of biological treatment the land identified in W5. (This relates to 
proposals on sites that do not accord with W3) 
 

The Lincolnshire County Council Minerals and Waste Local Plan Site Locations 
document allocates the Riverside Industrial Estate for:  
 
Resource Recovery Park, Treatment Facility, Waste Transfer, Materials Recycling 
Facility, Household Waste Recycling Centre, Metal Recycling / End of Life Vehicles, 
Re-Use Facility, C&D Recycling and Energy Recovery.  
  
The allocation extends over a larger area than the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, 
as it is based on the superseded Boston Borough Local Plan 1999. The proposed 
plant is located on land within the Minerals and Waste Local Plan Riverside Industrial 
Estate allocation.  
 

 
 
The proposal seeks to transport materials to and from the site by boat. The gasification 
process produces gas which will be used to generate electricity. The impact of boats 
and emissions from the process on the Wash will have to be assessed to ensure the 
Wash, which has International, European and National conservation designations, is 
not harmed and the characteristics for which it is designated are not undermined. 

  

Page 35



In summary: 
 

 The uses listed in the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan are B1, B2 and B8. 
The uses listed in the Lincolnshire County Council Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan Site Locations document are B2, B8 and Sui Generis. 
 

 The proposal is for an Alternative Energy Facility by processing waste by a 
gasification process. Energy Recovery in the form of “Gas from biological 
degradation of waste production, purification or refining place” is B2. A “Power 
Station” is Sui Generis.  

 

 In the context of the Lincolnshire County Council Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan Site Locations document the proposed Alternative Energy Facility 
complies with one of the bullet points in W4, in that the land is allocated in the 
Site Locations document.  
 

 In terms of the South East Lincolnshire Local plan a B2 use is appropriate on 
the allocated employment site. However, a Sui Generis use would need to be 
considered against “any other material Considerations”. Development on the 
Countryside, would need to be justified on the basis of the 7 criteria, a – g of 
Policy 7. 

 

 The proposal must not undermine the Wash nature conservation designation. 
 

2.4 Economic Development 
 
The Council’s economic development function is to develop and drive growth and 
enterprise across the borough to transform the local economy into a sustainable 
destination of choice for investing, working, living and visiting. 
 
In this context, the Boston Alternative Energy Facility (BAEF) will have a major 
strategic impact on the local economy, job creation, business and supply chain growth 
that influence the socio-economic factors on our local communities. 
 
The impact of this development presents a significant economic opportunity for Boston 
and the wider economy and is much more than just building a power station. The 
construction and operation of BAEF will provide significant boost and add value to 
local businesses through the procurement process.  
 
The size and scale of BAEF will also during the build provide a significant increase in 
local retail and hospitality spend as well as developing strong relationships with local 
schools, Boston College and University of Lincoln to deliver wide-ranging employment 
& skills, apprenticeship and traineeship opportunities in the energy sector and 
especially in Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM).  
 
Aligned to the Local Industrial Strategy, the BAEF is a catalyst for wider economic 
growth supporting opportunities for businesses of all sizes to supply goods and 
services throughout the construction and operational phases. The development would 
create a sustainable opportunity to diversify parts of the business base away from ‘low 
skill – low wage’ economy to one that could improve productivity through the 

Page 36



contribution of inward investment activity for high grade carbon dioxide (CO2), 
aggregates for the construction sector and heat extraction. 
 
Environmental Health  
 
Boston is subject to air quality issues and there are two Air Quality Management 
Areas (AQMA) in place. Concerns have previously been raised about the proposal 
and how the impact of the proposed site use must not adversely affect the existing 
areas, with a request for regular monitoring. 
 
The lack of information relating to the traffic management plan both for the 
construction period and clarity of site operations means that a detailed assessment 
cannot yet be assessed.  
 
We have requested that all the options for traffic routes for construction traffic and 
operational service traffic are examined as part of the process. In addition we note 
the potential on the AQMA of pollution via shipping vehicles. 
 
There is likely to be an impact on neighbouring communities on both sides of the 
River Haven in respect of potential noise pollution, light pollution, off loading/on 
loading of ships at night but until the detailed proposals are received, no detailed 
comment with regard to mitigation may be made. 
 
Supplementary Questions and Observations Requiring a Response 
 
There are many additional questions that are unclear from the information in the 
public domain and the Council as a statutory consultee would appreciate the 
response to these questions in order to be able to consider what level of support we 
may provide at a Public Inquiry. 
 

(i) The construction process is proposed to take up to four years, generate 
up to 300 construction jobs and give rise to construction work six days a 
week. However, there is no information as to how this traffic management 
will impact on local residents and business, in addition to the wider road 
network impact. 

 
 We believe there should be detailed consideration of an access road for 

the purpose of construction traffic to mitigate the impact of such heavy 
construction traffic on the community. 

 
 We believe that this provides an opportunity to work with our colleagues 

at the County Council is terms of how this might be upgraded to provide a 
permanent road to reduce ongoing impact of the use of the site once fully 
operational. 
 

(ii) We are mindful that Boston has two AQMAs in operation and we are 
concerned not to have received the detail in relation to traffic movements 
for both construction and operation service that would enable the Council 
to fully assess the potential impact and including shipping traffic how this 

Page 37



may be mitigated. We require detailed traffic assessment information 
before the project progresses further to the next stage. 
 

(iii) We note the high level of advanced technology proposed within the site, 
which will likely give rise to noise and pollution impactson local residents 
and businesses. However, without detailed proposals, we are unable to 
fully assess such impact and suggest areas of mitigation. We require further 
detail to enable such consideration. 
 

(iv) We are unable to fully assess the project against the policies of the adopted 
Local Plan as there are no plans of the proposed structures to view and 
assess only simple written descriptions. At this stage in the consultation 
process, we are disappointed we cannot provide more clarity and would like 
to delay the next stage of the process until such time as detailed plans are 
available for more detailed assessment. 
 

(v) We note one of the by-products will be aggregate. To lower the carbon 
footprint, by reducing haulage of this product, and provide additional 
employment opportunities and to further support the local economy, we 
suggest provision, at the design stage, to enable local distribution of 
aggregate products direct to local markets via road. 
 

(vi) We believe provision of facilities/proposals at the design stage, for the 
efficient and direct transference of baled waste from the Boston Waste 
Transfer Station, direct to the RDF receiving facility is worthy of 
consideration. 

 
(vii) We note the anticipated by-products and believe that the direct export of 

Heat / CO2 / Electricity to encourage local business and residential 
development is an opportunity. In addition, by encouraging further 
employment opportunities, this will offset the deficit in the labour allocation 
designated for the area as falling within BAEF development footprint – by 
way of example the labour allocation for this area is approximately 800 
jobs, but the proposed site will generate only approximately 100 jobs 
(after the initial construction). 
 

(viii) We would like to see the materials that are removed from the feedstock 
during the process as unsuitable for gasification, and recycled; are 
recorded and contribute to the county and national recycling targets. 

 
(ix) How will the material (approximately 20%) from bales that is not suitable 

from gasification, be separated and what impact will this have on noise 
and pollution. 
 

(x) We note that ferrous and non-ferrous metals will be removed, collected in 
separate skips and sent for processing off-site – what traffic movements 
are these expected to generate and what end use might these be 

 
(xi) We note that the existing flood defences are to be replaced - does the 

new Quay improve existing flood defences and if so, how. 

Page 38



 
(xii) What dialogue has there been with the Port as we are interested in the 

feasibility of boats turning at the knuckle noting the increased traffic 
proposed to transport the bales to the site and also at this stage, to take 
away aggregate. 

 
(xiii) We note the reference to the aggregate leaving by ship and a dedicated 

berth – how often will this ship leave and arrive in addition to bale 
shipping movements. 

 
(xiv) We have not seen sufficient detailed plans within the proposals to be able 

to fully assess whether there would be an impact on the ecology of the 
Haven and ecosystem around the application site, however we note you 
will be completing an Environmental Impact Assessment. 

 
(xv) We are mindful that renewable energy projects often provide a community 

fund to provide legacy projects within the community that mitigates the 
impact of the application site. We believe it would be helpful to the 
community to see this articulated in the documentation produced by the 
applicant to support the application. 

 
Conclusion 
 
There are many positive benefits the scheme as proposed will bring to the 
Borough of Boston and the Council wishes to work closely with the applicant to 
ensure all issues are fully considered before the final plans are submitted to the 
Secretary of State to ensure the design of the site can fully capitalise on these 
options to further enhance job creation and supply chain opportunities. 
However, the wider economic benefits must be balanced with the impact on the 
community, both residents and business together with the impact on wildlife and 
the River Haven ecology. Until such time as the detail surrounding plans and 
traffic, by way of two examples, are supplied, we cannot comment in any detail. 
We would respectfully request that the 6th August 2019 deadline is extended to 
enable all statutory partners to fully engage and have regard to potential 
Statements of Common Ground in readiness for the Planning Inquiry. We feel it 
will cause delay later in the process if the plans are submitted without the 
applicant having had the opportunity to fully consider detailed observations 
which will most likely result in amendments to design and enhance the final 
proposal. 
 
We look forward to hearing from you further with the points we have raised. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Michelle Sacks 
Deputy Chief Executive 
 

 
 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	3 TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - REFRESH
	Appendix 1 - Proposed Transformation Programme – 2020-21 to 2023-24

	4 BOSTON ALTERNATIVE ENERGY FACILITY CONSULTATION SUBMISSION
	Appendix 1 - Draft Consultation Response


